
United Nat ions 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY -SECOND SESSION 
Official Records* 

UN UBRAR 

COL.E .... 

COPY: 
DC NOT .a~OVF 

f, . .JM ROOt-! l 
!J. ''01 !WV1"-J : FIFTH COMMITTEE 

5th meeting 
held on 

Thursday, 29 September 1977 
at 3.15 p.m. 

New York 

S~~y RECORD OF THE 5th MEETING 

Chairman : Mr. TALIEH (Iran) 

Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Administrative 
and Budgetary Questions: Mr. MSELLE 

CONTENTS 

AGENDA ITEM 100: PROPOSED PROGRM~ BUDGET FOR THE BIENNIUM 1978-1979 (continued) 

General debate (continued) 

ORGANIZATION OF WORK 

* This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be incorporated in a copy of 
the record and should be sent within one week of the date of publication to the Chief, 
Official Records Editing Section, room A-3550. 

Corrections will be issued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee. 

77-56742 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C.5/32/SR.5 
3 October 1977 

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH 

; ... 



A/C.5/32/SR.5 
English 
Page 2 

The meeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m. 

AGENDA iTEM 100: PROPOSED PROGRAMME BUDGET FOR THE BIENNilJr·i 1978-1979 (A/32/6 o 

A/32/8, A/32/38 ; A/C.5/32/1 2 and 13) (continued) 

General debate (continued) 

1. Mr. SEKYI (Ghana) said that his delegation was pleased that the relationship 

between the Advisory Committee and the Secretariat continued to be characterized by 

mutual trust, especially at a time when the upward gro1rth of the budget magnified 

the areas of disagreement between them. 

2. His delegation welcomed the reduction in the size of the budget document. It 

agreed, however, vri th the vievlS expressed by both the Chairman of the Advisory 

Committee and CPC that it did not contain enough information to facil i tate 

responsible decision-making in the Fifth Committee. The budget document must aim at 

answering rather than raising questions and doubts, particularly where requests for 

resources were involved. What was needed was not additional volumes of a budget 

document but selected information which would help the General Assembly take 

informed decisions. 

3. It was a matter of great regret that the proposals in the performance report 

submitted by the Secretary--General at the thirty- first session had been taken as the 

mainteuance base for the programme budget currently before the Committee. Both the 

performance report and the related comments of the Advisory Committee had been 

issued at the very end of the preceding session and it had been impossible in the 

circumstances for members of the Committee to familiarize themselves adequately 

with their contents. Several delegations had made statements at that session 

deploring the tactics of the Secretariat in springing surprises and pressuring 

Member States into approving financial proposals which they had not had sufficient 

time to consider. In order to avoid a recurrence of that situation , his delegation 

endorsed the recommendation of ACABQ that the first performance report of a 

biennium should be confined solely to the necessary impact of inflation, variations 

in rates of exchange, and decisions of policy-making organs the implementation of 

which could not be deferred to the following biennium. 

4. On the question of personnel, his delegation was concerned chiefly about the 

practice of converting temporary posts to permanent ones and transferring posts 

financed from extrabudgetary resources to the regular budget. In its report on the 

work of its seventeenth session (A/32/38), CPC had noted that a distinction should 

be made between transfers of posts that had clear authorization and those for which 

there was none. Unauthorized transfers might not only distort priorities duly set 

by the Economic and Social Council and the General Assembly but might very well be 

unconstitutional. A case in point was the transfers made in UNEP which were 

purportedly based on an interpretation of the originating resolution. The 

/ ... 



A/C.5/32/SR.5 
English 
Page 3 

(Mr. Sekyi, Ghana) 

conversion of temporary posts into permanent posts was a tactic aimed at making 
non-recurrent expenditure recurrent and was, moreover, an unwholesome method of 
building a maintenance base for future programme budgets. 

5. One of the most difficult aspects of the programme budget for the biennium 
1978-1979 vTas the question of the growth rate. His delegation had sympathy both for 
those bodies such as CPC which had to determine growth rates for programmes and for 
the Secretariat which had to apply them. It understood the problems faced by the 
Secretary-General in implementing the General Assembly's directives on growth rates 
and hoped that CPC would help the General Assembly to give clearer instructions in 
that regard in future. 

6. He noted that the financial emergency of the United Nations - which the 
Secretary-General had not mentioned in his opening statement - remained on the 
Committee's agenda . 

7. His delegation had sometimes been dismayed by the voting behaviour of certain 
delegations. It was at a loss to understand •rhy certain delegations voted against 
appropriations for the Economic Commission for Africa, for example ~ and at the same 
time expected delegations from Africa to vote with them when appropriations for 
their regional commissions were considered. Perhaps if members of the Committee 
had an opportunity to observe at first hand the constructive projects undertaken 
by the economic commissions in the developing regions they might better appreciate 
their importance to the peoples concerned . 

8. Mr. GARRIDO (Philippines) expressed satisfaction with the documentat ion for the 
proposed progr~e budget for the biennium 1978- 1979 and noted that considerable 
improvements had been made in the preparation of budget documents since the 
initiation of programme budgeting three years earlier. There was still a need, 
however, ~or a closer correlation o~ inputs and outputs to ~acilitate the assessment 
of budgetary proposals. As the Chairman of the Advisory Committee had stated , an 
overview of full costs of the various programmes should be given. While the uses of 
extrabudgetary fu..'1ds were properly indicated in the programme budget, it vrould be 
useful to have information on all the sources of such funds. In addition, the 
over-all sources of funds should appear ahead of the expenditure estimates in the 
budget presentation. It was advisable to project the totality of resources for each 
programme, existing or proposed subprogramme or programme component. His 
delegation concurred with the recommendation of the Advisory Committee that 
comparative figures on extrabudgetary resources for the preceding biennium should 
also be furnished. The Secretary-General might also wish to look into the 
feasibility of providing quantifiable data suggested by the Advisory Committee in 
support of requests for resources . In the past the Fifth Committee had advocated 
the improvement of the accounting system of the Office of Financial Services and his 
delegation regretted the inadequacies in the data base caused by accounting 
deficiencies . 

/ ... 



A/C.5/32/SR.5 
English 
Page 4 
(~r. Garrido, Philippines) 

9. The rising level of the programme budget and the fact that three fourths of 

programme growth were related to additional staff caused concern to Member States. 

The Secretary-General should, however, be commended for his efforts to strike a 

reasonable balance between the most urgent requirements and the financial burden 

borne by Member States. Since most of the resources of the budget were eaten up 

by inflation and currency fluct-Jations, Member States should allow for a 

reasonable rate of real growth if the budget was to be used as a tool of development 

and as a means of implementing the objectives of the new international economic 

order. A 2.2 per cent real growth rate was reasonable within the context of 

General Assembly resolution 31/93. At its seventeenth session, CPC had differed 

with the Secretary-General on the interpretation of real gr~nh in the light of 

that resolution. \·lhile his delegatior .. did not dispute the manner recommended by 

CPC of assigning growth rates to the 26 major programmes, it tended to agree with 

the Secretary-General that the method was not applicable to other programmes such 

as those of policy-making organs. The Secretary-General had also made a strong 

case for the non-applicability of the relative growth rates defined by CPC in 

connexion with direct or full costs. The regional economic commissions should 

have the flexibility to set their own priorities among programmes within an 

over-all level of growth. In accordance with General Assembly resolution 2681 (XXV), 

the regional economic commissions should meet the ne ed for a unified approach to 

development analysis and planning; guidelines for setting growth rates should not 

defeat the purpose of that resolution. There was a greater need than ever to 

establish an appropriate methodology for measuring real grow·th which could be 

applied to the current medium-term plan. The Secretariat might wish to comment 

on the questions raised by CPC in paragraph 65 of its report (A/32/38). His 
delegation agreed with the recommendation of CPC that, in determining relevant 

grow·th rates in future, the assumptions regarding the availability of extrabudgetary 

resources should be spelt out. His delegation would therefore appreciate hearing 

the views of the Secretariat on the transfer of posts from extrabudgetary funds 

to the regular budget which, as noted by CPC, tended to distort priorities set by 

the Economic and Social Council and the General Assembly. 

10. His delegation shared the concern of the Advisory Committee over the apparent 

failure of programme managers to analyse systematically the composition and contents 

of the maintenance base, which prevented the elimination of subprogrammes, 

programmes, projects or activities which "\vere obsolete, of marginal usefulness 

or ineffective. Due attention must be given to the calculation of salaries and 

common staff costs in order to provide an accurate picture of the maintenance base. 

In that connexion, his delegation would like to know why the Secretariat had 

selectively applied the zero-base approach only in respect of certain expenditure 

items. 

11. His delegation supported the policy of full budgeting applied by the Secretary

General. Pending the determination of a common methodology for estimating 

inflation and its impact on the budget, provision for inflation should be made 

in the budget estimates on the understanding that the rate should be based on 

an annual average and be subject to revision should circumstances warrant. 

I . .. 



A/C.5/32/SR.5 
English 
Page 5 

(Mr. Garrido, Philippines) 

12. If the General Assembly decided that the fifth session of UNCTAD should be held 
in i'!Ianila in 1979, his Government would do its utmost to make UNCTAD V successful 
in every respect. The Philippine Convention Centre in f'!anila was equipped with 
the latest facilities and could easily accommodate a large conference such as 
ill~CTAD. In accordance with General Assembly resolution 2609 (XXIV), the 
Philippine Government would, of course, assume the additional costs arising from 
holding the session away from Geneva. 

13. In consi derinp individual i t ern s in the budget, his delep:ation 1.rould t al~e 
into account the comments of CPC on the programme evaluation reports. It agreed, 
however, that the increased emphasis on economic and social information should be 
maintained and reflect ed in the regular budget. In that connexion, the Cormnittee 
should give favourable consideration to the establishment of an information 
service unit in the Department of Economic and Social Affairs. 

14. His delegation noted with interest the plans of the Secretary- General for the 
expansion of meeting rooms and the improvement of conference servicing and 
delegate facilities at Headquarters. The problem of accommodation should be met 
squarely by the General Assembly, since it loomed larger as more Members were 
admitted into the Organization and the growth of staff continued unabated. In 
considering those plans, Member States might wish t o take into account the 
corrosive effects of inflation on building projects "\-rhich were delayed or postponed. 

15. His delegation looked forward to the report of the Secretary- General on 
technical innovations in the production of publications and documentation of the 
United Nations and hoped that his proposals would lead to economy and efficiency 
in the production of documentation, which consun1ed a large part of the budget. 

16. One of the most important reports to be considered at the current session was 
the report of the International Civil Service Commission, which would cover , among 
other things, principles for cetermining conditions of service and salary scales 
in the General Service category in Geneva. His delegation hoped that a practical 
solution would eventually be reached in that regard. 

17. On the question of staff, his delegation w-as confident that, despite political 
pressures, the Secretary- General would do his best to comply with the criteria 
and guidelines laid down in the Charter and General Assembly resolutions for 
the establishment of staff characterized by professionalism , loyalty and dedication. 

18. Lastly, his delegation supported t he budget estimates for the Conference on 
Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries and the estimates for programmes 
in the economic and social sectors , taking into account the related reports of 
the Advisory Committee. 

19. Mr. SCHMIDT (Federal Republic of Germany) said that in recent years Member 
States, particularly some of the larger contributors, had become increasingly 

/ ... 



A/C.5/32/SR.5 
English 
Page 6 

(Mr. Schmidt, Federal Republic of Germany) 

alarrred over the ccntinuo~s grcwth of the budget. Their concern had not abated. 

An increase in the total budget proposed for 1978-1979 of more than 26 per cent 

over the initial estimates for 1976~1977 did not permit a relaxation of the 

efforts to arrive at a restrictive budgetary policy. The Secretary-General's 

personal initiative in promoting sound administrative and financial practices 

was of crucial importance to the prestige of the United Nations and to international 

co-operation. 

20. His Government believed that no attempt should be made to attribute 

scientifically precise values to the cost components in the Secretary-General 1s 

budget proposals ; that -vras especially true of the figures for the rates of real 

grovrth of individual proe;rammes " -vrhich should be regarded simply as indicators. 

Methodology was a device for copine; uith a complex reality ; it should not be 

substituted for the reality itself. His delegation could not agree that the 

maintenance of programmes could be equated with the maintenance of resources and 

that therefore the Secretary- General had little control over the cost components 

constituting the maintenance base. To accept such reasoning would be to relieve 

the Secretary- General of his obligation to keep the effectiveness of progr~~es 

under review and to eliminate or reduce obsolete and marginally useful activities. 

Even though the budget document paid lip service to zero- base budgeting, there was 

still no serious attempt at programme evaluation in the United Nations. The 

Secretariat continued to shelter behind the argument that only intergovernmental 

bodies could alter priorities and change or abolish programmes, even though a 

number of programmes preserved only a tenuous link to some bygone resolution. 

Admittedly, the difficulties of adjusting personnel costs to changed circumstances 

were considerable . However, in regard to such other items as consultants, travel 

and supplies, the method of calculating the maintenance base, the real gro-v~h rate 

and the inflationary component left much to be desired. 

21. His delegation encountered a similar problem in accepting the Secretary

General 1s statement that the inflationary component of the budget proposals was 

beyond his control. It was one of the Secretary-General's responsibilities to 

find vrays of absorbing the inflationary costs, just as national Governments -vrere 

contrained to do. Perhaps semi- full budgeting would lead to greater budgetary 

discipline ; however, regardless of the budgeting technique adopted, the main 

objective must be to place some limitation on automatic cost increases ascribed 

to inflation. 

22. Hith regard to personnel costs, massive proposals for the conversion to 

established posts of current temporary-assistance posts, the use of credits from 

extrabudgetary sources to finance established posts, and substantial new requests 

for temporary assistance funds masked the true picture. In future submissions, 

the Secretary-General and the Advisory Committee should give a complete analysis 

of the total manpower requirements of the Organization, indicating which posts 

were charged to the regular budget and 1·Thich to extrabudgetary sources and which 

posts represented support functions. The present separation of posts into 

established posts and full - time temporary posts, some of lvhich had existed for 

many years, was unrealistic ; moreover, it served to promote the idea that 

established posts w·ere permanent and untouchable. 

/ ... 



A/C.5/32/SR.5 
English 
Page 7 

(Mr. Schmidt, Federal 
Republic of Germany) 

23. Nevertheless, his del egat ion detected a pos itive trend and was apprec i ative of 
the efforts being made by the Sec r et a r y-General and his staff to i mpl ement a 
stricter budgetary policy than i n the past . It understood the Secretary-GenE:ral's 
difficulties and the changing requirements of the Organi zation and 1-rould 
participate in a pos itive spirit i n the section-by-section consideration of the 
proposed programme budget. Its final pos ition would depend on the 1ray the 
discussions evolved and on developments in the cons iderat ion of other quest i ons 
during the current session. 

24. Among the important questions to be settled Has the acceptance of a scale of 
assessments for the coming biennium and the matter of finding a solution to the 
problem of the current deficit. The i mproved cash pos ition of the United lJations 
·Has due solely to the Secretary-General's continuous endeavour to collect the full 
assessed contributions on time and to the co- operat i on of a number of Member States. 
His delegation did not find it easy to continue to agree to the reconstitution of 
the $40 million Harking Capital Fund vrhose re sources vrere continuously being 
depleted to fill the ga p created by the 1-rithholding of assessed contributions. 

25 . Hi s delegation shared the Sec r etary-General 's vie1-r that an equitable solution 
in the matter of General Service salaries at the Geneva Office 1-ras urgentl y called 
for if staff action ~-ras to be forestalled. His Government 1-rould have no sympathy 
with such action if it ~-rer e t o take plac e and welcomed the promis e gi ven by the 
Secretary-General to act with speed. 

26. His country 1-ras mindful of it s responsibility as a large contributor to the 
regular budget; it was as ready as ever to give full financial backi ng to the United 
Nations and at the same time to further the Organization's object ives by 1-ror king 
towards a sound financial policy and an economical administrat i on . 

27. Mr. GEORGE (India) pa id tribute to the Secretary-General for his illuminating 
statement and to the Advisory Committee for its thorough, consc i entious and 
sensitive treatment of the issues. 

28. In the Secretary-General 's budget proposals, the allocation of r esources to 
the various major programmes had, for the first t i me, been influenced considerably 
by the CPC recommendations on relative real gr ovrth, recommendations 1-rhich had 
subsequently been endors ed by the General Assembly in resolution 31/93. The 
average grovnh rate, however, emanated f r om the Secretary-General's proposals 
themselves rather than from a legislative decision. Mor eover, resource fluctuations 
in a number of areas - for example, pol itical and decolonization activities, common 
services and maintenance - influenced the average growth rate, which in turn 
affected the volume of r esources available for activities in the economic and social 
spheres. In small pro grammes the impact could be substantial , even though the 
increased demands by the Sec r etary-General might be entir ely justifiable, as in the 
case of the narcotics control and human rights prograroffies . He suggested that the 
Budget Division should comment on the impact on the m~or economic and soc i al 
proe;rammes of the growth of those sections of the budget wh i ch had not been studied 
in depth by CPC. 

I . . . 



A/C.5/32/SR.5 
F:nglish 
Page 8 

(Mr. George, India) 

29. The calculation of the ma intenance base was of vital importance for on it the 
establishment of the average gro-vrth rate, and consequently the entire resource 
allocation to ~ajor programmes, depended. The Advisory Committee appeared to be 
some1-rhat dissatisfied 1-rith the method used by the Secretary-General for such 
calculation, although it did not suggest an alternative method or figure. He hoped 
that the Advisory Committee would shed some further light on the problem and propose 
a better method. Clearly, too, the defined aims of channelling the growth of the 
budget into pre-determined priority areas had not been fully achieved. A 
considerable amount of study by the Secretariat, the Advisory Committee and CPC 
vas required before a satisfactory resource allocation for the various major 
programmes could be arrived at. In that context, his delegation associated itself 
with the observations of CPC in para8raphs 60 to 65 of its report (A/32/38) on the 
practical problems of determining real gro-vrth. It might be useful for the Advisory 
Committee and CPC to exchange views on that crucial issue so that each could 
benefit from the experience of the other. 

30. Hith regard to the comments in paragraph 23 of the Advisory Committee's 
first report (A/32/8), he asked the Chairman of the Advisory Committee to remind 
delegations of the recommendations made by that Committee in previous biennia, and 
the Secretariat to respond, so that there could be an evaluation of the progress 
made. 

31. Frank internal and external evaluation was a pre-condition for the precise 
allocation of priorities among programmes and subprogrammes and for economy in 
programme delivery. Yet, surprisingly, CPC had discovered that fe1-r programme 
managers conducted a stringent evaluation of the effectiveness of the activities 
for v1hich they vrere responsible, because fe~-r means of measuring programme 
effectiveness existed in the Secretariat and because the criteria suggested to 
programme managers for evaluation were based on financial considerations rather 
than on concern for effectiveness of delivery. At the same time, clear 
possibilities for improvement existed thanks to the availability of u::msed raw data 
within the Secretariat and of an internal machinery of objective evaluation 
reporting directly to the Secretary-General. It l·rould be better to institute 
evaluation by an independent Secretariat unit of that nature rather than to continue 
with self-evaluation by the programme manager. Absence of data on the impact of 
programmes was an obstacle to objective evaluation. His delegation therefore 
appealed to all developing countries to assist in assessing the effectiveness of 
United Nations programmes implemented on their initiative. 

32. Use of the gro-v~h rate as a means of budgetary control could have serious 
consequences for the expansion of activities in the economic and social sectors. 
In the past, extrabudgetary sources had often been used to fill gaps and, 
consequently, his delegation was not alarmed by the Secretary-General 1 s proposal to 
transfer some extrabudgetary activities to the regular budget. Indeed, the 
Organization could usefully learn from the experience in that regard of some of the 
more innovative agencies in the United Nations system. 

I ... 



A/C . 5/32/SR.5 
English 
Page 9 

(Mr. Geor~e , Ind i a) 

33. The substantial provision for inflation in the Sec r etary-General 's budget 
proposals represented a particularly onerous burden for the smaller contributors 
without offering any compensation through increased programme delivery. l'1itigation 
in the form of a reduced assessment vrould have an adverse impact on the policy of 
recruiting staff on a •rider geographi cal basis . 

34. Careful scrutiny of the budget proposals revealed several ins t anc es in which 
obsolete programmes and pr ogr ammes of mar ginal usefulness had been t er minated and 
ne-vr a ctivities had been i nitiated on the basis of existing staff resources . S:: hat 
phasing-out of ineffective activities, vrh ich was not a l ways clearly documented i n 
the Secretary-Gener al's submission, iTas uelcome. 

35. Hith rega rd to the manning-table, the Sec r etar y-General had requested the 
conver s i on to established posts of a number of posts, currently char ged to general 
temporary assistance and extrabudgetary sources . Befor e the Committee considered 
the sections of the budget thus affected, his delegation 1-ro uld welcome clarification 
as to how acceptance of the Secretary-General's proposals would affect the principle 
of equitable geographical distribution, and particularly the i mpl ementat ion of 
those provisions of resolution 31/26 uhich r elated to the representation in the 
Secretariat of developing countries. His delegation shared the Advisor y Committee 's 
concern about the vacancy situation, espec ially the shor tage of personnel in the 
economic commissions serving the developing regions. It supported the CPC 
recommendations on decentralization of activities. However, since effect ive 
implementation of those recommendations would depend on the ava ilability of 
resources, it wi shed to hear some explanations regarding probl ems in r ecruitment 
and r etention of personnel in the regions before the Co~mittee took up the sections 
of the budget relating to the regional commissions. It would also like the Offi ce 
of Per sonnel Services to state the extent to which the practice of charging staff 
on short-term contr acts against vacancies impinged on established r ecruitment 
polici es . 

36. In conclusion, he suggested t hat , before the Committee sc r ut i nized the 
individual sections of t he budget, t he Cha irman of the Advi sory Corrmittee should 
inform Member States of t he effects of that Committee's recommendat ions on the 
average and relative gro-vrt h rates of the proposed budget. 

37. Hr. FOKINE (Un ion of Sovi r:t Socialist Republics) said that t he att itude of che 
USSR to administrative and budgetary questions was based on the Soviet Gove:"-•'"!lent 1 s 
support for the Unit ed Nations , its active participation i n t he Or gan i zat ion 's 
activities and it s concern with respec t to enhancing the e ffec t ivenes s of the 
United Nat ions as an important instrument for the maintenance of peace and security. 
Resources must be used rationally and should be devoted pr imarily t o accomplishing 
the basic tasks of the United Nations as set fo r th in the Charter, namel y 
maintaining i nternat ional peace and security , promoting the relaxation of 
international tension and making those pr ocesses irreversibl e . 

/ ... 



A/C.5/32/SR . 5 
:Cnglish 
Page 10 

(lir. Fokine, USSR) 

38. In recent years , Unit eO. Hat ions e}cpendi ture had been growing at an 
unjustifiably high rate. The Soviet Union could not accept that trend, which was 
reflected r.1ore than ever before in the proposed prog ramme budget for the biennium 
1 978-1979. Contributions by Member States were not devoted entirely to those tasl\:s 
fo r "\vhich the Organization had been founded" and some funds "\Vere even used for 
purposes inconsistent "~Vith the Charter. It was also wrong for funds to be used 
ineffectively or even squandered. 

39. The United Hations budget had been c;rowing much faster than the average 
national income of :Iember States, and the resources which States were willinG to 
make available to the United Eations had fallen vell behind the increase in the 
Organization's expenditure. Such a contradiction was intolerable, and must be 
solved through the more rational a,nd economical planning of such expenditure. 
liember States, particularly the developing countries, would not benefit from the 
rapid increase in United Nat ions expenditure. Budgetary outlays "~Vere devoted 
lJrimarily to the upkeep of Secretariat staff, and the increases in the a.lready 
overstaffed and under-er.1ployed Secretariat, as well as the unjustified increases in 
staff emoluments, bore no relation to the real development needs of i,iember States. 

l.~o. The proposed programme budget ought to have been prepared vTith due regard for 
the requirements of the General Assembly , the concern of many Hember States 
concerning the current situation, the need to increase the effectiveness and economy 
of United Hat ions activities and the need to stabilize the budget. Hmrever, the 
Secretariat had not only i gnored those requirements but had proposed unjustified 
increases in expenditure. The proposed programme budget for the bienni"Lun 1978·-1979 
represented an increase of ;~ 232. 5 million over the proposed proc;ramme budg et for 
the preceding biennium, and decisions by intergovernmental bodies and the General 
Assembly r;1ight result in a considerably greater increase. 

41. The inadequacy of the upper echelons of the Secretariat with respect to 
increasine:; the effectiveness and econorny of the Organization ' s activities on the 
basis of General Assembly directives had been der,lonstrated more clearly than ever 
before . There had been a number of serious short~comings in the preparat ion of the 
proposed programme budget, the elimination of which could result in the reduction of 
unjustified expenditure. The programme budget contained practically none of the 
information requested in General Assembly resolutions 3534 (XXX ) and 31/93 concerning 
programmes about to be completed or cut and the resources released. Similarly , 
there was no information on programmes that were obsolete, of mar gina l usefulness 
or ineffective ~ in general, the proposed progra1mne budget had been prepared "l.rithout 
a pro per analysis of all existinQ; prograrr.!liles. I·1ember States were therefore unable 
to determine which new activities could be carried out on the basis of resources 
which had been released or which were due to be released in the course of the 
following bienniurn, nor could they judge the extent to which proposed increases in 
expenditure were justified. The Secretariat should therefore comply with General 
Assembly resolutions 3534 (XXX) and 31/93 and make the relevant information 
available before the Fifth Coumittee completed its consideration of the proposed 
programme budget. In the proposals before the Committee, the Secretariat had not 
only included practically all current activities of the Organization but had also , 

I ... 



A/C.5/32/SR.5 
EnGlish 
Pae;e 11 

(IIr. Fokine" USS?.) 

on its m-m initiative, requested appropriations for expancnn:; proc;rmiimes : suc~1 an 
approac11 ran counter to rules 153 anc~ 15~ of the rules of procedure and to the view 

of the Advisory Cor,linittee that increases in proe::;rammes vere e;enerally supposec~ to 

follow the dec isions of policy-nal~ing bodies rather than precede the:il. The 
Secretary~General , in his capac i ty as chi ef a dluinistrative officer of the 

Organization> 1-ras respons i ble for complyin.:; ui th the instructions of the General 
Assembly and ensurinc; that the Secr etariat did not exceed its authority . 

42. The Secretariat had proposed the establishment of 487 new posts. Ho\:-ever , it 
had fai l ed to justify e~cpendi ture 9 thereby v i olatinc the pril"lcipl es of zero -~ base 
budc;eting, it had not provided infonmtion on resources released, and it had. f a iled 

to take into account all the personnel and financial resources available to it. 
The pr oposal to establish new posts was therefor e unacceptable, and his delegation 
disagreed on principle wi th the Secretariat's policy of autowatically increasinG its 

staff. Personnel requirements should be determine(!_ on the basis of modern 
managerial techniques, the needs of priority pro::sraJTILles and the proper use of 
resourc es released . The productivity of the Secretariat could be raised by 

i mproving the organizat ion of work , perfectinG managerial techniques and increasing 
accountability. Programme budgets must be desi gned to ensure the correct 
utilization of r esources , particul arly human resourc es 0 and his c:.elegation vras again 

sub1uitting a p roposal ·co the effect that the Joint Inspection Unit shoul d be 
entrusted 1.ri th the task of verifying actual utilizat ion of personnel in the 
Secr etariat. His delegation could not support requests for addit i onal perraanent or 

te1nporary posts. 

43. In its resolution 31/93, the General As senbly had approvec~ the CPC 

recoilllllendations concerni ng the rate of growt h of lilajor prograrr..mes 9 but the 
Secretari a t had circumvented those recoEmlendations vrhen preparinG the proposed 
programme budget. For exampl e, the rate of groHth of prograrurJ.es concernin:; the 

environment, assistance to refugees and public info rmation had been classed as 
;) considerably belm-r average '1 

9 but the rate of e; rm-rth for those programmes unde r the 
p roposed programme budget uas 8 .4 per cent, 5.3 per ce nt an<l 2 per cent respectively. 

Si milar discrepancies "l.rer e present in other progra!Dliles o and the Fifth Committee 
Lmst therefore make the necessary r eactjust1tlents. 

44. The ~-, 1onetary and financ i a l crisis lvhich was affecting capitalist countries and 
uhich 1-re,s g i vine; rise, amone; other things , to spiralling inflation vras beginning to 

have an adverse effect Oll the United Hations budg et 9 but the decisioD of tl1e 
Secretariat to shift the burden of the additional expenditure involved to all 
Hember States was inconsistent v ith the de cision taken at the tvrenty-first session 

of the General Assembly whereby increased expenditure due to rises in prices sho·u.l<l 
so f a r as po ssible be absorbed by mal(ing economies, by r eassessraent of prioriti es 
and by adjustments Hithin the budget. In addition , a General Asse;'lbly resolution 

adopted at the tventy-ninth session had su.c;gested that ) 1-rhen dealing 1-rith probl e:,ls 

of inflation' the Secretarie,t shoul u be c uidecl by the viei-TS of l'1lei'lber States > and 
many States h ad repeatedl y advoc ated t 1,at the effects of inflat ion shoul d be 

abso r bed through economy, adjust1·aents within the budg et or contributions from those 
developed countries where the Secretaria t had branches. The Secret ari at had faileo. 

I . . . 



A/C.5/32/SR.5 
English 
Pccbe 12 

( i.ir . Fokine ., USSB) 

to take those views into account, and his delega_tion could not) therefore , support 
proposal s to i nclude in the proposed programme bud~et appropriations to cover 
inflation. 'i'he Secretary-General should tal<::e effect ive measures to control the 
i r.!pact of inf lation on the budget, inst itute austerity lile asures, i mpr ove the 
pl a nn i nc; of purchases and consult with the Governments of those developed countries 
1-rhich were most affectec. by inflation and -where United Nations ag encies were 
l ocated. Sin1il a rly , his delegation could not support the proposal concerning 
vol untary contributions to cover inflation, and it requested that the Secretary
General sub!;lit an annual report to the General Assembly on the question of 
inflation. 

45. The Secretariat had estimated the real g rmvth of the proposed programme budget 
at 2.2 per c ent, but the actual g rowth rate had been understated. The basis of 
c o:wpar ison use d was not the prog ramme budg et for the p eriod 1976-1977 as approved 
·oy the General AsseElbly ( ~783.9 !!lillian) but the level of activities attained 
durii1[; the c urrent budg et period expressed in 1977 end- of-year prices 
( :~;841 r3 Erillion). l'Ioreover , the new method took into account not the tot a l real 
g rovrt h ,Jf the n ew budget ( : ~) ~3. 7 million) , but only a part of that growth less the 
so-called non -- recurrent expenditures. If calculations had been based on the 
methodoloc;y u s ed in the pa st, t he grovrth rate of the proposed prog r amme budget 
v:oul d c.rr:.ount to 5. 6 per c E. nt, and that rat e must be compared with a g rowth rate of 
4. 2 per c ent for the progra.l!1IIle budget fo r the biennium 1976~1977. The raethodology 
used to c a lcul ate the grmrth rate had therefore distorted the a ctual rate and thus 
caused it to climb even hic:;her. 

46. Ther e had been an increasing tendency in the Secretariat to transfer posts 
previously financed from ext r abuclc; etary funds to the regul ar budget vrithout a 
spec i a l decision of the General Assembly , and according to the proposed programme 
budget 41 such transfers would be e f fected. In that connexion, the attitude of t he 
Advi sor y Comu i ttee 1vas inconsistent : two years previously ACABQ had opposed such 
transfers but it currently endorsed a number of them . His country strongly oppo s ed 
the practic e. If posts currently financed from voluntary and other e xtrabudgetary 
funds Here transferred to the regular budg et, it would consider withhol d i ng the 
aElount to be used to cover those posts from its contribution to t he r egul a r budget . 

47. In general, the tendency to upgrade posts was unjustified, since i t was not 
related to increased r esponsibility or to an increase in the vol ume or complexity 
of the worl~load , an o_ served mer ely to facilitate staff p r omot i ons. Post 
reclassifications should depend exclusively on prograE~e requirements , and his 
delee;;ation therefore opposed the post rec l assifications included in the proposed 
progr amme budget. Future bude;;ets should indicate t he costs of all kinds of services , 
includinG the lease of premises by the Organization to other a (Sencies in the United 
Nations system and voluntary funds , a nd should provid e for the f ull reimbursement 
of the cost of those services to ensure that the activities of other a g enci e s were 
not f inanced under the regular b udg et of the United lJations. Ui:JDP should r e i mburs e 
the actua l overhead costs incurred by the United Hations a nd the agencies in respect 
of the i Dplement ation of mTDP proc:;r amHes. 

I . .. 



A/C.5/32/8R.5 
English 
Page 13 

(llr. Fokine , USSR) 

48. It -uas to be regretted that the proposed programme budget still included 
expenditure t o repay the 17 loan to the United Nations :: negotiated in connexion uith 
operations undertaken in the Congo and. the Middle East. The Soviet Union had 
o~posed those operations, was not responsible for them and refused to cover the 
expenditure involved. The operations \vere undertaken in violation of the Charter, 
and the resulting financial i mplications should be borne by the countries 11l1ich had 
imposed them on the Ore;anization. Hith respect to the financing of technic al 
assistance , it was clear from Article 17 of the Charter that such assistance must 
be financed solely on the basis of voluntary contributions. As in previous years , 
his country would make its volunt ary contributions for technical assistance in 
national currency. 

49. The rate of [;rovth of the United 1~ations budget was unjustifiably high, and 
both the Secretariat and Member States must play an active role in solving the 
problem. In that connexion, the number of programmes should be determined by the 
resources which ll'lember States were able and prepared to contribute. Strict 
priorities must be established >vith regard to the implementation of programmes, and 
it must be determined whether programmes could be completed within the time 
available. In determining programme priorities, account must be taken of 
alternative \vays to implelilent programmes within the United Hations system, the goal 
beinc; to increase co- ordination and reduce duplication. Meetings of new organs and 
conferences must be financed from resources saved through the setting of priorities, 
reductions in the number of United Hations organs and in the length of their 
sessions, a more rational and economic organization of meetings, redc1ctions irl 
expenditure on documentation, and so on. Further reductions in expenditure on 
experts and consultants, overtime, travel and telegraph costs, purchases of 
permanent and other equipment, and the construction and repair of prer:!ises could 
result in significant savings. Finally, a ceiling should be established 1-rith 
respect to the annual increment in budgetary expenditure , a ceiling to be agreed 
upon by Hember States with due account being taken of the views of the main 
contributors to the budget. Hith respect to the proposed programme budget under 
discussion, the level of expenditure on United Nations activities during the 
biennium 1978- 1979 should be the same as that for the current biennium, and all 
new activities approved by the General Assembly should, as far as possible, be 
financed with funds released from programmes that had been completed or cut or 
with funds obtained through the establishr'lent of priori ties, the elimination of 
duplication , increased productivity in the Secretariat and greater economy 
throughout the system. 

I ... 



/ljf"" ,-:- f--,')/C' ':) ')
- ~ v._.!f:)._ >.)cc , 

B::lgl ist 
Page 14 

(I lr . Fo_~~ine , USSR) 

50. Some pro c;r e ss -v;as being made vith respect to improving the geographical 
distribution of Secretariat staff, but the principle of equitable geographical 
distribut i on must be observed more strictly in order to prevent States from 
excee<linc; their quota.s. '~he rejuvenation of the Secretariat could be achieved 
through tl1e tiYJ:ely r et iremen·c of staff members of pension a ge, and the efficiency 
of the Secreta riat could be increased by eliminating permane nt contracts. His 
delegation had propose d a r 2alistic and just meti1cd of solving the Organization 1 s 
financ i e.l difficulties. V.Jith respect to t he financing of DrTEF, the Secretariat 
had not pr ov i ded enough information on how t he r e levant appropriations vrere 
spe11t, aDd it was to be hoped t hat t he Secretary~General 1 s report on the questioi.1 
would contain information on both future aDd past expenditure. Hhile it had 
contributed to the rr.a intenance of Ul\fi:F since 25 Oc tober 1 975 , the Soviet Union had 
had nothing to do Hith the second Egyptian~Israeli agreement concluded outside 
t~1e frame'JOr~: of the Geneva Peace Conference, and it could not, therefore be 
r esponsible for the implications of that agreement. Accordingly, it would not 
pay that part of its contribution to UF:8F vrhich 1vas intended to cover expenses 
incurred in connexion vTi th the agreement in question. United Nations forces 1-rere 
stationed i ll the Middle East on a strictly temporary basis and should not be used 
to delay a comprehen.sive settlement in the region. 

51. His delegation supported all the recommendations of ACABQ and CPC -vri th 
respect to making United 1'Jatimls activities more effective and economical. Hm.rever , 
the Advi sor y Committee must intensify its efforts to ensure reductions in 
expenditure , it mus t show greater persistence in supervising the implementation 
of its mm recommendations and it must be more consistent in those r e commendations, 
In its latest report, the Advisory Committee had failed to provide a fundamental 
assessment of the role of the Secretariat concerning the unjustifiably high rate 
of growth of tl1e budget and of the Secretariat 1 s failure to implement a number of 
i n11Jo r tant General Assembly directives. ACABQ and CPC should assume a more active 
role in stabilizing the programme budget and , in that connexion, the Secretariat 
should provide a report on the financial implications of the decisions of CPC 
with r egard to the programme budget. In acldi tion, the Secretary- General should do 
everything within l1is pm.rer to improve the administrative and budgetary management 
of United Nations activities a nd to ensure compliance with the requirements of the 
General Assembly concerning the effective and economical running of the 
Organization. In general , radical action 1vould have to be taken in order to 
i Elplement General Assembly r2solutions concerning t he budget and in order to 
stabilize expenditures, The proposed programme budget for the biennium 1978-1979 
1-ras cotally unsat isfactory and unacceptable to the Soviet delegation. 

OHGA11TIZATIOfi OF HORK 

52. The CI-IAI RivJlUIJ suggested that , in order to ensure full use of the time allocated 
to the Committee , consideration of item 104 should be advanced to ti1e 1.reek of 
3 October. 

53. It was so decided. 

The meeting rose a t 5.15 p .m, 


